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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERBE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”),
| am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was RMB645,885,000, representing a
decrease of 0.3% as compared with RMB647,672,000 for the previous
year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company decreased
to RMB144,726,000 from RMB161,216,000 last year. For the year ended
31 December 2019, basic earnings per share decreased to RMB25.83
cents from RMB28.78 cents last year.

In 2019, with its 30-year history, under the new historical conditions, the
Company explored and adjusted its business strategy and innovated
development model, with the aim of pursuing the path of sustainable
development. We gave full play to our technological advantages,
increased investment in technology, and intensified product research and
development, so as to capture the market with our leading technology
and high-end products.

This year’s achievements were the results of joint effort of our staff at
all levels. As the state further deepened the reform of the health care
system and continued to increase the anti-corruption effort in the
area of pharmaceutical distribution, we overcame the factors relating
to increasing production cost, dropping drug prices, restriction on
prescription of medicines, two invoice system, reform of traditional
marketing mode and rising costs of certain raw materials, and achieved
the goals of projects set out in the beginning of the year. As such, the
Board would like to share its view on the Company’s competitive edges
with shareholders since these edges would allow the Company to
achieve further success in the coming years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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Firstly, with emphasis on sales as always, we persisted in expanding the
market through diverse channels and have established a professional
marketing team that primarily consists of clinical academic members,
supplemented by OTC members, which enabled the steady growth of
sales. While firmly focusing on the sales target of the Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEEZRBH), our dominant product, we strived to ensure no
loss of existing market, continued to strengthen academic promotion,
strived to explore uncharted markets, proactively organized and
participated in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at state
level and gained market share. Meanwhile, we continued to increase the
sales of Compound Huonaoshu capsule (#877)& 5472 %), our branded
product, and made further efforts in the production and marketing of
injecting drugs, including Edaravone injection ( i 3 7 2= 5% §F /& ), and
blood serum tablet (MA%/E Fr), which propelled our sales to a new level.

On the other hand, we emphasized the research and development of
new drugs. We cooperated with a number of pharmaceutical universities,
research institutes and a number of experts in the field of drug research
and development and scholars and increased investment in developing
technologically advanced new drugs, with independent intellectual
property rights.

Moreover, we have strictly followed the management regulations of the
new version of Good Manufacturing Practice, strengthened management
of production sites, established a rigorous quality control system, applied
quality concepts to production management, and enhanced our efforts
in quality control throughout the production process. In connection
with Company’s strategic development plan, we strictly implemented
production management, enhanced quality, reduced costs, increased
efficiency, so as to guarantee the supply of goods against rapid growth in
sales.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

B RAGRBRAHE TIERER - B
ZRERITS - BT B RERKSEME T
X - OTCHh RE M FERICEHEE - (£
HEXGERPER - RMRZBRIBREE
BEIE—TEmE BRERBEAMSEITE
Ko HERCENER  SHREEATS
BRAEASN2EEZAERENEH B
ReEMEHAER  FREERANRREER
[ETEMEBRE INHEEE - MAIKERZE
EFRIFES R mEM MAKE R | EHEE M
BEHNE  FHEXEF L —EHAME -

F—AE BRAEEHERETIE BEANS
RERIKE ~ TR DA K 2 2 By BT 3
BR - BERREE - IMAFHERFEHOHRA
MEAARMEREE  BXEZMERNH

BE  HAERBBITHRCGMPEIZRIE - N8
EERSEE  BUBRENREEDRE 1L
mEH S ERANEETRET  RIEEERBET
mEEENE  HERREEERIE - &I
HEEEE - RME - BRAK B0 RIEE
RFERBHERRE -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ERBE

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus, it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance with
internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim, the Group
has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened internal training
and sought professional advice from experts so as to safeguard interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Looking ahead, we will continue to adhere to our business philosophy,
that is, “focusing on technological innovation and serving the public and
endeavoring in the pursuit of health for people around the world”. We
will strive to become globalized and contribute to the healthiness of the
people around the world as the endeavor and pursuit of “Changlong
people”. Our ultimate goal is to achieve rapid growth for “New
Changlong” and grow into a centennial enterprise.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all
levels of staff and the management for their efforts and contributions in
2019 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business partners and owners
for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
30 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s revenue decreased
to RMB645,885,000 from approximately RMB647,672,000 while the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company decreased
to RMB144,726,000 from RMB161,216,000. For the year ended 31
December 2019, basic earnings per share decreased to RMB25.83 cents
from RMB28.78 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (/& & & & 2 ) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

Investments in wealth management products

During the reporting year, the Group subscribed for and held various
short-term investments, from time to time, in the wealth management
products (the “Wealth Management Products”) issued by Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China, China
Construction Bank, Bank of China, Postal Saving Bank of China and
Bank of Jilin. The Wealth Management Products were mainly relatively
lower risk of default. The expected annualised rate of return of the Wealth
Management Products subscribed during the year was around 2.8%-
4.1% (2018: 2.1%-5%), which was relatively higher than the comparable
market bank deposit interest rates.

The subscriptions were carried out by the Group for treasury
management purpose in order to maximize the utilization of its surplus
cash received from its business operations, with a view to achieving
balanced yields whilst maintaining high liquidity and a low level of risks.
Taking into account of, among others, the low level of risks and the
expected rates of return, the Group considers that the subscriptions
will provide the Group with better returns than the returns on deposits
generally offered by commercial banks and increase the Group’s
overall earnings in the long run. The Group will monitor and manage the
subscriptions more closely and effectively.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not experience any losses on
the wealth management products. Further, the subscriptions were funded
by the surplus cash of the Company and are redeemable on demand or
highly liquid, therefore they would not affect the working capital or the
operation of the Group. As such, the Directors are of the view that the
subscriptions are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group
and the Shareholders as a whole.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investments in the Wealth
Management Products were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in its consolidated statement of financial position, and
amounted to approximately RMB683,483,000 (2018: RMB571,612,000).
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the gain realised by the Group
from the Wealth Management Products amounted to approximately
RMB11,428,000 (2018: RMB16,994,000).

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets — valid until 28 January 2021

2. Capsules — valid until 28 January 2021
3. Bulk Drug (Gardema Extract) — valid until 28 January 2021
4. Membrane (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment & Extraction)

—valid until 28 January 2021

5. Pills (Condensate) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment &
Extraction) — valid until 12 February 2020

0. Bulk Drug (Fucoidan) — valid until 12 February 2020

7. Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 30 January 2024

8.  Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

9. Small Volume Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

10. API (Edaravone) — valid until 30 January 2024

11.  Solution (External Use) — valid until 28 August 2022

12.  Granules and Pills (Water Pills) — valid until 28 August 2022
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group and
finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year of
2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun Shen
Xi capsule, which has now become the largest contributor of revenue
and its revenue reached our target level.

The Group invested approximately RMB41,752,000 in research and
development projects during the year.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, the Company put in more efforts in hardware
transformation by upgrading and transforming small-volume injection
workshop, lyophilized powder injection workshop, membrane workshop
and injection raw material workshop and acquiring new equipment, which
resulted in improved production capacity and satisfied the demand of the
market.

During the year, a solid medicine workshop has been newly-built and
some testings had been carried out. The workshop is used for research
and development and consistency evaluation of generic drugs such
as irbesartan tablets, febuxostat tablets and metformin compound
preparations. The Company’s product mix has continued to expand,
its research and development capabilities and market competitiveness
have also improved. Pharmaceutical research for irbesartan tablets was
completed recently.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s recorded revenue
amounted to approximately RMB645,885,000 (2018: RMB647,672,000),
representing a decrease of approximately 0.3% as compared with the
figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB144,726,000,
representing a decrease of 10.2% as compared with RMB161,216,000
of the previous year. The basic earnings per share amounted to
RMB25.83 cents (2018: RMB28.78 cents), representing a decrease of
RMB2.95 cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in 2019.
It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to the
following reasons:

Firstly, we placed emphasis on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough with the rapid growth of sales of our dominant products,
thereby reaching our sales target.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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Secondly, we have followed the management regulations of the new
version of Good Manufacturing Practice, attached great importance to
staff training and strengthened the production management in 2019,
thereby bolstering the growth and development of the Group.

Thirdly, we continued to strengthen academic promotion, enhance our
understanding of clinical performance of various medicines and explore
the unique value of our products while proactively organizing and
participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at national
level.

Fourthly, we further strengthened our efforts on integrating market
resources, encouraged reasonable mobility of personnel, unified the
price of products supplied and regulated sales practices. Focusing on
enhancing clinical sales, efforts were made in various areas, such as
soliciting business from the medicine departments of hospitals, in order
to identify new profit drivers.

Fifthly, we continued to strengthen the buildup of our sales teams, fill
up market gaps, and link staff recruitment and filling up market gaps
together with leadership responsibility system, increase the efforts in
developing new products and lay a solid foundation for better corporate
development.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2019 was
approximately 83.4%, representing a 1.2% increase as compared with
that of 82.2% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB37,970,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB58,188,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Distribution and selling costs decreased to approximately
RMB336,217,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 from
approximately RMB375,480,000 in last year. These expenses accounted
for 52.06% of revenue in 2019, which represented a 5.91% decrease
from 57.97% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB64,691,000 from approximately
RMB28,450,000 last year.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this year. As
at 31 December 2019, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to RMB137,389,000 (2018: RMB158,340,000) with total borrowings of
RMB2,350,000 (2018: RMB2,350,000) which were interest bearing at
commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had total assets of RMB1,671,477,000 (2018: RMB1,554,841,000)
which were financed by current liabilities of RMB387,872,000
(2018: RMB375,484,000), long term borrowings of RMB490,000
(2018: RMB1,100,000), deferred tax liabilities of RMB Nil (2018:
RMB52,000) and shareholders’ equity of RMB1,238,533,000 (2018:
RMB1,133,025,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB137,389,000. As at 31 December 2019, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 26% (2018:
27%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities of
RMB432,944,000 (2018: RMB421,816,000) by the Group’s total equity
and liabilities of RMB1,671,477,000 (2018: RMB1,554,841,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to total net
assets was 0.2% (2018: 0.2%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 856 employees and has employed some
temporary sales persons.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions and
the performance, qualifications and experience of individual employee.
Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contribution. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement scheme and medical scheme.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities
which benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 65, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments from
November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and secretary of the Party
committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since October 1989.

Mr. Zhang Hong is the father of Mr. Zhang Yi, our executive director.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 56, male, is an executive director and general manager. He holds
a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the positions of
the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang Town Engineer
Affairs Equipment Factory of Shenyang Railway Bureau from July 1983
to September 1989; deputy director of Foreign Trade Bureau of Huinan
County from October 1989 to November 1990; executive director
and deputy general manager of the Company since December 1990;
appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 53, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He holds
a bachelor degree and is a senior accountant, a certified accountant and
certified estimator. From August 1990 to May 1995, he acted as director
of Finance Bureau of Huinan County; from June 1995 to February
2007, he held the position of director and equipment executive director
and finance officer of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy
Company Limited and was appointed as executive director and chief
finance officer of the Company since March 2007 .

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 55, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director. He
holds a master degree and is a senior engineer. From September 1988
to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University;
from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was appointed as executive
director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007; appointed as deputy sale
director of part of east China since 2010.
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Zhang Yi

Aged 39, male is an executive director and executive deputy general
manager, held a Master’s degree. He attended combined Bachelor’s and
Master’s degree programs in the clinical department of Jilin University
for seven years from September 2000 to July 2007. He studied in the
First Hospital of Jilin University from 2007 to 2008 and took up IMBA
courses in Beijing Jiaotong University from 2009 to 2011. From 2011
to 2014, he worked as the General Manager in Changchun Changyuan
Pharmaceutical Industry. He has been working in Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited as executive deputy
general manager.

Mr. Zhang Yi is son of Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman and executive
director of the Company.

Xu Xiang Fu

Aged 50, male, held a tertiary qualification. He graduated from the School
of Medicine in Jilin, specializing in medicine, and is a senior engineer. He
has been working for Changlong Pharmacy since 1992 and is currently
the Deputy Technical General Manager of the Company. In 2015, he
was awarded two patents for inventing the “Methodology for Retrieving
Fucoidan” and “A Methodology for Retrieving Fucoidan”. In 2016, he
participated in the project of development and application in Haikun
Shenxi Capsule and was awarded the second-tier prize in Jilin Province
Science and Technology Award.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Gao Yong Cai

Aged 64, male, Mr. Gao is a Chinese Certified Public Accountant. He
has over 30 years of experience in audit and accounting services. He is
currently serving as a partner of the Huinan Jin Shi Joint Certified Public
Accountant (i & B A ZFTRI S FT). Prior to this, he was a partner
of Huinan County Audit Firm (¥ g £ %8 5T Bl =2 7% F7). He worked at the
Resources Bureau of Huinan County (3 r & #)& /) from 1974 to 1994.
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Gao Qi Pin

Aged 68, male, is currently the Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral
students in the research and development centre of Changchun University
of Chinese Medicine. He graduated from Shenyang Pharmaceutical
University with a Master’s degree in 1982. He was the Deputy Dean and
researcher of the provincial Academy of Sciences for Chinese Traditional
Medicine from 1982 to 1998, during which he had been working in
Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan for two years and obtained the Doctoral
degree after working in the University of Tromse in Norway for more than
four years. He was the Head of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control
and Secretary of party committee from 1998 to 2006. He is now the
Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral students of Changchun College of
Traditional Chinese Medicine, the Officer of Key Laboratory of Chinese
Medicine Macromolecules in Jilin Province and the Officer of Key Research
Centre for Active Components of Chinese Medicines in the Ministry of
Education. He was the committee member of the eighth, ninth and tenth
Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission; the National New Drug Appraisal
Expert; Science Advancement Award Appraisal Expert from the Ministry
of Science, the Honoured President of provincial medicine society, senior
associate expert from Jilin Province and the winner of special allowance
from the State Council. He was once the person in charge for more
than 20 national, provincial and divisional projects. He was involved in
the research and development for three new medicines (Infantile spleen-
strengthening oral solution (/\ 52 2 f# B Az /& ), Colon Recovery Capsule
(4575 F B 52), Ginseng Glycopeptide Injection (A £ # Bi T 57 /&), and
initiated around 100 enhancements of standard revision for medicines,
which have been implemented by our provincial enterprises. He possessed
five invention patents. As the first awardee, he won one top-tier provincial
and divisional prize, three second-tier prizes and a number of participant
prizes. He has reached a leading international level with certification
on the research studies of the structural effect and relationship among
ginseng polysaccharide, tremella polysaccharide, polysaccharide and
microsphere connectors. He was ranked the Outstanding Communist
Party model of the Work Committee for Organs Under Direct Supervision
for twice. His study background and working experience are as follows:
educated youth in remote villages (November 1968 to August 1973); the
student of the medicine department of Shenyang Medical College (August
1973 to October 1976); the pharmacist of the Jilin Provincial Institute
(Baicheng District) for Drug Control (October 1976 to October 1980); the
Master’s degree postgraduate of Shenyang Medical College (October
1980 to December 1982); the Research Assistant, Research Associate,
Researcher, Deputy Head, Head, Deputy Dean of School of Research of
Chinese Medicines of the Jilin Province (December 1982 to March 1998),
and among which: the Research Assistant of Kitasato Institute Hospital in
Japan (August 1986 to August 1988); the Doctoral Postgraduate, Senior
Visiting Scholar and Guest Researcher in the University of Tromseo in
Norway (October 1993 to March 1998); the Senior Pharmacist and Head of
Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party committee
(March 1998 to March 2006); the Professor and Officer of the research and
development centre of Changchun University of Chinese Medicine (March
2006 until now).
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Tian Jie

Aged 48, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been working
at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (&5 #& #% 2 2 A0 % 7% Ff) since March 1993 and
has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is currently serving
as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.

SUPERVISORS

Yan Li Yu

Aged 49, male, held a tertiary qualification. He has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited since
1989 and is now the Superintendent of sales division of Changlong
Pharmacy. He worked in the material division of Changlong Pharmcy
from 1989 to 1994. He worked in the marketing and sales division of
Changlong Pharmcy from 1994 to 1996. He worked in the material
division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1996 to 2007. From 2007 until now,
he has been working in the sales division of Changlong Pharmacy.

Qiao Xiao Chun

Aged 44, female, held a tertiary qualification. She has been working in
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited since
1994 and is now the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop
of Changlong Pharmacy. She worked as a supporting staff for Changlong
Pharmcy from July 1994 to January 1997. She was the Sales Manager
stationed in Tianjin for Changlong Pharmacy from 1997 to 2003. She
assumed the position of Superintendent of quality control division of
Changlong Pharmacy from 2003 to 2012. Between 2012 and 2014,
she was the Merchandiser of production supplies division of Changlong
Pharmacy. She was the Deputy Head of production management division
of Changlong Pharmacy from 2014 to 2016. From 2017 until now, she
is the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop of Changlong
Pharmacy.

Wang Ying Xu

Aged 36, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin Huatai
Certified Public Accountants (FM& EZR RIS 5FT) from September
2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and now
serves as officer in finance department of the Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 39, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 15 years of
experience in auditing and accounting.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December 1995,
under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the Company
was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a limited liability
company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the Economic
Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999, the
Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained profits at
the proportion of one bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC under the
brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the
PRC. In 2019, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from sales in
the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental analysis is prepared
for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 51 to 128.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.

This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

BBENBE
UTAXEEEMEEEURAERBEZH
2 DR TERBEERY - AR TE
BERIBRERZ 85 -

Results E4
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Revenue WA 645,885 647,672
Profit before income tax R iS50 AR A 175,294 186,323
Income tax expense Fi8fi sz (30,568) (25,107)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities REERDEINREREB AFEL
attributable to owners of the Company ABEBE R 144,726 161,216
Assets and liabilities EERERE
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Total assets BEE 1,671,477 1,554,841
Total liabilities FES=R (432,944) (421,816)
Net assets EEFE 1,238,533 1,133,025

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE

ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out

in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2019. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group had no other future plans for material
investments or significant changes in capital assets of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20 to
the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 29 to the
financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits, and to
fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in Note 33 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to approximately
RMB1,101,692,000 (2018: RMB993,808,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 14% of its goods to its five largest
customers (2018: 15%) and sales to the largest customer included
therein accounted for 5% (2018: 6%) of the Group’s total sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 45% (2018: 48%) of the Group’s total
purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein accounted
for 17% (2018: 22%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2019
are set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Vi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Ying Xu
Mr. Yan Li Yu

Ms. Qiao Xiao Chun

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on the
boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of
this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen
Zhang Vi

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered into any
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

EEREERRONER

R-ZE—NE+—A=+—H ARAESE
EERFETBRABRALNR REBEEE
(EERBHFRBEEMN(EHRBEER )
EXVED) MRS - ARG REHFTHEFRE
BE N HAE D5 35216 - BN AGZIEHT &
ks AR - SRIKE R FTGEME S
AR (TGEM MR ]) 55.4614 2 5.67 15T
EEFEERMIZEMABANSEARR REZAT
MRS AR ¢

Long positions in shares RBROHERE

Percentage of

Type of Number of Percentage of total registered

Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital

1 48 5 AR A

5= RE=ER g4 AERHE HRERB DL HWEZL

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
EEIN &A EnEEA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SREE fEA EnEaA

Xu Xiang Fu Personal Beneficial owner 5,227,000 1.348 0.933
EAEES & A EnEA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
KRB fEA EnEaA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the B LEXFEEZEN  R_FT—hLF+ A

Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards
of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor and chief
executive or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2019, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

EEBEARDVER

B EXEEREENBMDAOER | — BRI E
EI BEFE  BEERTETHARBREES
BHEBE T\ T FRERRRITEE
35 B AR 2 AN S B 55 M XA 2 2 #E
Ao mARE - BERA R SEEM KB R R
BRI AR REE  EEREBIT
AB AR R ZEBAZFHER

REEZRPERGATRENE
BmREERR

R-T-NF+-A=+—B  RBEATR
I % RS () 336 1R B 17 1 R & T
R UTAL(RRRES - EEREETH
ABBINRAEA RS RAABRG AR

Az NN
mMORE ©

Long positions in Domestic shares RRERHNER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares  Domestic Shares Share Capital
G ARA
REEH B RERME RERHE ERERBSL WEDL
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BESRKREEREETRR(MZ) BHZEEA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have any
direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the Board of
Directors.

Long positions in H shares

Bret - BRAMEAR A BB A RSN R SEEIRREERE
ERARYEEGARRNEMEZKMEES B
EEEERNRE -

RHEHNRE

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

{RAAE MR A

RERERB 514 HER &R EHRBE D WEZE

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 1711 5.269
R IE EREAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11 2.498

LEY BEaBEBA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article of
association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was established, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the year
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in
Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision over the financial
reporting procedures and internal control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the audited
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
128 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 27 to 34 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the Company
to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
30 June 2020
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Vi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai

Ms. Tian Jie

Mr. Gao Qi Pin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

EERERER
ARBBORERSFENDEER - URE
HiRREaRRAECXEE -#E-T—H
FHZA=Zt - BLERFEREEAFRT
FEHHE - ARF2ETGEM AR BIM 821557
FEEERTA -

ESETESXZNEESA

RATRERBREITES X DRNRTAER
BTN ERGEM ET iR B 5 5.48 £ 5.67 AT
HEIETESFIZMIZRETR - RARKR
PRESELREERE  REEZZE—I4F
T-AZ+—RALFEE2F  AQFAFNE
EATETELSRIRER S EANEBES
EITHEAF R GRTERZIEMR °

ESERESEER
ENRBEARERS  ANAEFE -

HITES
SROLEE(E/E)
REELEE
HERITE
REEE
RERLE
fRAXELE

BYFHITES
=K et
MLt
SHEMEL

RARERY  EFEERNBESAK - Hf
NERARRBZHITES  ZB/ARAIZE
MHHITES - FEFNERNEEFBHR
AEREERDREEEHE] & -

TG REE L EERNBERAR
ZE-NFFR

27



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

28

EEERRE

The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board of Directors to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The INEDs serve the relevant function
of bringing independent judgement on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have been given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent in
character and judgement. The Company has received from each INED
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately quarterly
intervals to discuss the Group’s business development, operation and
financial performance. Board papers are circulated not less than 7 days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the board meetings. Minutes of
board meetings are kept be the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, other than the family relationship
disclosed in the biographical details of directors and senior management
set out on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the Board.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Board meetings EEgEeR
During the year, six regular board meetings were held. Details of the FR > BRITANANEREEZSEE 2= H
attendance of the Directors are as follows: EEIBWT -

Meetings attended/Held
Directors X CHE BETEE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SROLFEHE(FE) 6/6
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREE ST 6/6
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang FHE M 5T A 6/6
Mr. Wu Guo Wen KRB A 6/6
Mr. Zhang Yi RE LA 6/6
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu RAIKRTTAE 6/6
Independent Non-Executive Directors B IEMITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai =KA 6/6
Ms. Tian Jie A#Ez L 6/6
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SHEmEE 6/6
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board of B Fill&FEZ THEEZ=@ e %I EEgn)

Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in advance of
each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board is of the view
that this has not compromised accountability and independent decision
making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advice
when considered necessary.

EVNARNEEFEFELERTERBRIAERS
TRRE®E NEXARESZgRHA &3
RIRERBIAERECHIZEAREZERE SR
Daﬁiﬂi‘i

ERRITHRAR
IR RIEA 2 AT - £/ RATHUERM
FE S QB - TR R F— ALFEE - &
5L et B R AT A A R 2 £ RATBUAEH, ©
EERRA  WERTRPEHMERFHE
SR - REWT

— BERZESEHEIMFMTESMEMN

- BYEFTRRREFTERESMER
SEARBIINEZBMER B LEE
2R

TG REE L EERNBERAR
ZE-NFFR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

30

EEERRE

Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board is of
the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman who is
knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is most capable to
guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent
issues and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board
and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of shareholders. Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms.
Tian Jie are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs are
appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office shall
continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1 month’s prior
written notice is given by either party or the Company to terminate the
same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment and they are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous professional
development for the year ended 31 December 2019 to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under review, the
Company has provided updates and coordinated training on the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Yong Cai, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Mr. Zhang Hong. The
remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year and the
quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the board
of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:
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Meetings attended/Held
Members RE BHE BETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai SKA 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie A+ 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin mEmEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Hong sRSASEAE 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and members
of senior management, and discussed the remuneration policy of the
Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment letters
of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according to
the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of
reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and supervising
the framework, number of members and composition of the Board and
making proposals to the Board in respect of any changes and identifying
and nominating suitable persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr.
Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Yong Cai is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review and
approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such as professional
expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2019, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number of
members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination Committee
has identified and made proposals in respect of the outstanding
appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance
records of each member are as follows:
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE BHE BETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai SKA 2/2
Ms. Tian Jie A+ 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin mEmEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang RN 2/2
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently comprises ~BwZZE®KYN _ZFZT—F » HATHSKA

three members, Mr. Gao Yong Cai, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie.
All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr.
Gao Yong Cai. The Board considers that each Audit Committee has
broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise
in business, legal, accounting and financial management in the Audit
Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships
or day-to-day involvement in the running of the business. The Audit
Committee oversees the financial reporting process and the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control. During
the year, the Audit Committee carried out their own independent review
of the interim and annual financial statements and financial reports and
statements included in circulars of the Company published during the
year. And with the assistance of the internal audit department, which
reports directly to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of
internal control and reported its findings and recommendations to the
Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review. BZZES@REEFEALBRITINAEH - &
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:  #%ZE8& &= 2 HEFIBWT

Meetings attended/Held
Members RE BHE CETEE
Mr. Gao Yong Cai SKA 4/4
Ms. Tian Jie A+ 4/4
Mr. Gao Qi Pin mEmEE 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual audited
results during the year ended 31 December 2019 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results were complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out
in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 41 to 50 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2019, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional training of
15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to the
identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its
business activities and has implemented a practical and effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound cash management system and periodic review of
the Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board to ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based
on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board has conducted
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and is of the
view that the system of internal control adopted for the year is sound and
effective. The Group does not maintain its own internal audit team for
cost-saving reason but the work is shared between related parties in the
Company to assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the Interim
Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with
institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to
their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcomed and
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting at
which all directors and Committee chairs are available for questions. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

ExeHssE

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the Company
(the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory Committee of
the Company exercised conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and the Company, and
followed the principle of honesty and integrity and worked cautiously and
diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements of
the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results and
asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report of the
Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and
regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the
opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the Board,
the general manager and other senior management of the Company
have strictly complied with the principle of honesty and trustworthiness,
worked diligently and sincerely exercised their authority to the best
interests of the Company. None of the Directors, general manager nor
other senior management of the Company have abused their powers,
caused damage to the interests of the Company and infringed upon
the interests of the Company shareholders and its staff, nor have they
violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Qiao Xiao Chun

Jilin Province, PRC
30 June 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has complied with
the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix 20 to the GEM
Listing Rules and the relevant information is set out below.

A. ENVIRONMENT

1.

Emissions

The major raw materials used by the Group in production
are various kinds of Chinese herbal medicines and their
production and operation may have a minor effect on the
environment and the natural resources. The Group actively
fulfils its social responsibilities, always adheres to the concept
that development and environmental protection are equally
important and makes rational use of various resources to
protect the environment. The Group strictly complies with
the provisions of the Environmental Protection Law of the
People’s Republic of China so as to achieve saving energy
and consumption reduction, lowering discharges and
improving efficiency, and try our best to minimize the impact
that the production and operation process have on the
ecosystem.

Use of resources

The Group also advocates the concept of green production
so as to achieve the target of energy saving, consumption
lowering and discharge reduction. The Group saved various
kinds of resources by optimising the technological process,
enhancing the technology standard, using LED energy-saving
lighting and cutting down water consumption during the
production process. Moreover, with respect to the protection
and recycling of water resources, the Group adopted a
recycle system throughout the production process so as to
reduce the amount of water resources used.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s
consumption in electricity, coal and water were:

Electricity: 4,236,000 kWh
Coal: 11,556 Tonnes
Water: 99,976 Tonnes

Environment and natural resources

The Group pursues the best practice between the
development and the environment, and takes into careful
consideration of all the aspects and activities within the value
chain to mitigate the impact on the environment. To achieve
the sustainable development of the environment, the Group
regularly provides environmental protection information and
practical advice related to environmentally friendly living style
to staff for circulation.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

HE_ZT-NF+_A=T—RHILFE £&
[ 28 57 GEM L AR RIUM 8% — + P8R R -
HeRkEAmERSDEINN N ETHEE]
&3 - BRAERA TR -

A. RiE

1.

23567
AEBERREENETEZRMHAS
BhEE HAEKLLSHNRER
AARERABEEMTE - ~EEE
BETHEEML  HRBHERE
REREVENES  AEMNAS
BER NEBRTHBITRER
& AREBRBER(PEARK
MERRREE)FHEBHE - #
—FERIETREFERE - BUSIEMA B
B BRI EELERRETHE
RARERNTERERIE -

BEREA
AEBMEEKEAERES - ED
BhgE - BRFE - BUSHER - AEE
EAEEBAERPRATETISHRE
RARMEE  IMEELEDETRERR
B BT ROKEE  SIOREE
B e R EKERIEELBRH
b REBAEERSRABERK
A5 URAKERINERE -

RBE-T-NE+-A=1-F
IS - REBREE - FRRAK
25

B 4,236,000 F B
R 11,5562

K 99,976°ANE
RIERRARER

AEBERERBENREER - N
KREHEEBRANE EZE S mLd
BIEHZEEZR  REHRENT
2 RERRRAUBEER A%
EEHEE TEMRFRAELER
RREBTANERZS °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BIR - B RERERE

B. SOCIETY

Employment and labor practices

1.

Employment

Employees are regarded as the greatest and most valuable
assets and core competitive advantages of the Group who
continuously provide the source of innovation for the Group.
The Group offers competitive remuneration and welfare, and
implements comprehensive performance appraisal scheme
to award and praise the staff with excellent performance and
assists them with their career development and promotion
within the Group by providing appropriate trainings and
opportunities. Meanwhile, in order to create a favorable and
fair working environment for employees and protect their
physical and psychological health, the Group will give careful
consideration to all the valuable suggestions for improving the
working efficiency and harmonizing the working atmosphere
proposed by employees, thereby establishing a united,
harmonious and professional team for the Group.

The Group strictly complied with the regulations and
provisions of laws in the PRC and Hong Kong, formulated
and strictly implemented the relevant management system
and measures, and expressly specified the employment,
labor relations, treatment, promotion, benefits and retirement
of the staff to safeguard their interests.

The Group strictly complied with the PRC laws and
regulations and policies associated with social insurance,
and made full contributions to various social insurance and
housing provident fund for all the staff in a timely manner.

Health and safety

Employees are the most important wealth and resources of
the Group, therefore, the health and safety of employees are
always the top priority of the Group. The Group is committed
to protecting the employees with production safety while
endeavour to protect and care about their healthy and to
provide a safe, healthy and protected workplace.

The Group established a comprehensive management
system in occupational health and safety, strictly complied
with the regulations of occupational health and safety in
mainland China and Hong Kong, and laid a solid foundation
for safe operation. As at 31 December 2019, the Group did
not experience any significant safety accident during the
operation.
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Development and training

The Group adopts the principle of unified management and
stratified training for the education and training of its staff.
Upon joining the Group, new employees must participate
in pre-service training focusing on the Group’s corporate
culture, corporate policies and goals, production safety,
necessary skills, etc. A series of tailor-made training courses
are provided to senior management and middle management
on anti-corruption practices for leaders as well as trainings
for middle and senior management of listed companies. The
Group will evaluate the training effects subsequently, so as to
enhance the pertinence and effectiveness of training, which
will further enhance the technical skills and professional
quality of the Group’s employees of each level achieving
satisfactory results.

Labour standards

There is a clear requirement on the age of applicants in the
recruitment management system of the Group. The Group will
review and check the identification information of applicants
during the recruitment process and absolutely no child labor
will be employed. Applicants should provide documents
of educational background and working experience for
our verification when they report to work. Any suspected
applicants providing false documents of educational
background and working experience will not be employed.
The Group strives to create a safe, healthy and comfortable
working environment for the employees, and provide labor
protection, reasonable remuneration and various benefits
to the employees. The Group enters into an employment
contract with each of the employees in accordance with
relevant regulations in the PRC and in Hong Kong, and
forbids any kind of forced labor.

Operational practices

5.

Supply chain management

Supply chain management is always one of the key links in
the Group’s quality control system. The Group focuses on
the risk management of product quality and keeps a close
eye on signals of quality and safety crisis of its medicines.
Attaching great importance to product compliance, the
Group organizes self-inspections and rectifications in a timely
manner to ensure product quality.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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To ensure the quality of the purchased raw materials,
auxiliary ingredients and packaging materials, the Group
has established a supplier management system in strict
compliance with the Law of the PRC on the Administration
of Pharmaceuticals, GMP, and other relevant laws and
regulations. A standardised management system is
implemented on the procurement of materials under a
comparatively well-established management system.

The Group also carries out long-term quality monitoring
and regular reviews on all suppliers. In case of a significant
change in supplier qualification or serious quality issue
occurs, the Group may suspend the delivery of the supplier in
question immediately to ensure the quality of the medicine of
the Group.

Product responsibility

The Group is committed to ensuring product safety.
Especially, as most of our products are pharmaceuticals,
product quality and safety are undoubtedly the top priority of
the Group.

The Group always sticks to strict product quality control
throughout the production process. The Group’s quality
control is executed primarily in accordance with relevant
requirements of GMP quality management system.

The Group has formulated a complete set of quality
inspection management standards covering traditional
Chinese medical materials, auxiliary ingredients, packaging
materials, semi-finished and finished products, and sets out
requirements on various test objects, test methods and test
contents. During the year, the Group had no products recall
due to quality.

Meanwhile, the Group carried out advertisement promotion in
accordance with the law, further safeguarded the rights and
interests of consumers, ensured the legal compliance of the
Group’s advertisement promotion and stringently prohibited
any acts that would cause damage to the image of the Group
and the brand, such as illegal advertisements.
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Anti-corruption

All of the Group’s operations are in compliance with local and
national legislation on standards of conduct, such as with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong and relevant
legislation on anti-corruption and bribery in mainland China.

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to code of
business ethics and forbids any corruption bribe behavior as
stipulated in the employment contracts. In case of any conflict
of interest, it must be reported to the Group’s management
immediately. Employees, who engage in business operations
and represent the Group’s professional image, are strictly
prohibited to use business opportunities or power for
personal interest or benefit.

Community

8.

Community Investment

The Group always seeks to become a positive momentum
in the communities in which it operates and maintains close
communications and interactions with the communities in
order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a beautiful and
peaceful community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together with
various community partners, the Group believes it can bring
a tremendous impact on the sustainable development of the
communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage the staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It provides
the employees with the opportunities to explore more issues
of the society and environment and reinforce the Group’s
corporate values.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBREE

R REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNERE(EB)EEHENSEHAABRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 51 to 128, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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NRZZNERE(EB)EEHENSEHAABRAE

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
° Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

° Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

21/F, Tai Yau Building, EBET
181 Johnston Road, 2B 18155
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE211E

ERWER
BRPEREBESHASEMACTEE
FERNVEITERE - RMEZFERTAENE
EEEARE [ ZBEN A F 4R A M RETA
ENEEIMOPIFE—TEL - REFTES
R A G R EXEEEEERTRDAT
B TR - BB EEE - YCE
TELBEERARTAFNEMBERERE
£

BFIHEE - RPIFFESHETREETE E
EHARMNEL B RIRMHER

BAEETEE

B FEERERMANEXAE - ReY
ARG EMBRRNETRAERNER - &
LERETERMBABBERAMBHRRELA
BREETRIEN - R TS HELEREH
BENEA -

BAEET BRI HERES FEMALT
. R E HRR M A K EERNRE

. BARE AN EREEMRE



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBREE

R REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNERE(EB)EEHENSEHAABRAE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

Refer to Note 3 (critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note
24 (trade receivables and contract assets) to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures. As at 31 December 2019, gross
trade receivables and contract assets of the Group amounted to RMB365
million, which accounted for approximately 22% of the Group’s total
assets. The allowance for expected credit losses of trade receivables and
contract assets amounted to RMB70 million, all of which was attributable
to customers located in China.

Management judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets and adequacy of
allowance made using the expected credit losses (“ECL”) model under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”. These judgement includes estimating
and evaluating expected future receipts from customers based on
historical experience, ageing analysis, subsequent settlement status,
past collection history, current economic conditions and forward looking
information.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and
the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and contract assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets included:

= Understood and validated the credit control procedures performed
by the management, including its procedures on periodic review
on aged receivables and assessment on recoverability of these
receivables;

= Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment of trade
receivables;

= Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic conditions
and forward-looking information and examining the actual losses
recorded during the current financial year;

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on trade
receivables by checking to the underlying sales invoices; and

- Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables balances.
Where settlement had not been received subsequent to the year
end for those unprovided aged receivables beyond the credit
period as at year end, we obtained the management’s assessment
on the recoverability of these debts and corroborated explanations
with historical settlement pattern and underlying correspondence
with the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we are satisifed that the estimation and
judgement made by the management in respect of the collectability of
receivables were supportable by the available evidence.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Refer to Note 23 (financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held interest in unlisted
financial assets of RMB683 million with a gain on fair value change
of approximately RMB8,483,000 for the year then ended recorded in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. We focused on this area because the fair value of these financial
instruments is accounted for approximately 41% of the Group’s total
assets which is considered significant.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss included:

- We reviewed relevant documents to understand the key terms of
the investment contracts and reviewing the accounting treatment
to assess if there were any current year’s changes that needed
to be taken into account in our assessment of the valuation of the
financial assets;

- We conducted interviews and completed questionnaires with
responsible officers of the banks for validating the existence of
those contracts and their major terms;

- We obtained confirmations of the instruments’ market values as
at 31 December 2019 directly from the banks;

- We checked to the subsequent disposal made after year end of
instruments valued at RMB554 million of the unlisted financial
assets; and

= Reviewing the presentation and disclosure of the financial assets
to comply with relevant HKFRSs.

Based upon the above, we are satisfied that the assessment made by
the management in respect of the fair value of financial assets at the year
end was reasonable.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Kwong Man.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Kwong Man
Director
Practising Certificate number P04645

Hong Kong, 30 June 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBmRkHMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIIFZ

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kzt ARMT T ARETTT
Revenue L ON 4 645,885 647,672
Cost of sales SHES AR (107,533) (115,554)
Gross profit el 538,352 532,118
Other income H A 6 29,487 51,576
Other gains HAbYas 7 8,483 6,612
Distribution and selling costs DN HE RS (336,217) (375,480)
Administrative expenses 1T (64,691) (28,450)
Profit from operations gl 175,414 186,376
Finance costs &R 8 (120) (53)
Profit before income tax R A5 550 A A 9 175,294 186,323
Income tax expense i3 fisz 10(a) (30,568) (25,107)
Profit for the year REE @A 144,726 161,216
Other comprehensive income H A2 E - -
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEZHEWEAHE 144,726 161,216
Profit attributable to: AT MR
Owners of the Company KABEB A 144,726 161,216
Total comprehensive income DU e 2 E W e
attributable to: %G
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEDN 144,726 161,216
Earnings per share BRAET
— Basic (RMB cents) —HER(ARES) 11 25.83 28.78

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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meEEEEER
As at 31 December 2019
R-ZF-—NF+=—HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AREET T ARBT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAR
Non-current assets IRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 16 13,402 11,745
Property, plant and equipment Y% - = Rk 17 145,242 156,591
Prepaid land lease payments BN tLfEE 18a - 15,068
Right-of-use assets EREEE 18b 38,340 =
Construction in progress EETRR 19 74,061 67,588
Intangible assets B EE 21 - =
Deferred tax assets RETIBE = 31 1,510 944
272,555 251,936
Current assets REBEE
Inventories "E 22 50,145 52,456
Trade receivables FEUE ZBRFR 24(a) 260,154 249,326
Contract assets EHEE 24(b) 34,934 45,309
Other receivables, deposits HAbfEUFRIE « FT K
and prepayments TEfR IR 25 232,817 225,408
Loan receivables EWE R 26 - -
Prepaid land lease payments SN i i ey 18a - 454
Financial assets at fair value through BARERT AEZED
profit or loss EREE 23 683,483 571,612
Cash and cash equivalents R RReFEY 27 137,389 158,340
1,398,922 1,302,905
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables FERE SRR 28 34,553 31,705
Contract liabilities aRaE 8,902 14,779
Other payables and accruals H At e /I8 R EET & A 270,051 280,446
Deferred income TEIEUTA 30 989 589
Income tax payable FERFTISHR 29,255 20,645
Other tax payables E R IE 22,516 16,754
Loan from government authority BTH# A E R 29 1,860 1,240
Dividend payable FERTAR B, 19,746 9,326
387,872 375,484
Net current assets REBEEFE 1,011,050 927,421
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 1,283,605 1,179,357

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEEEEER
As at 31 December 2019
R-ZF-—NF+=—HA=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AN RHEZT)
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it AREET T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Loan from government authority BN E R 28 490 1,110
Deferred income FEIEUT A 30 44,582 45170
Deferred tax liabilities FREFIBEE 31 - 52
45,072 46,332
Net assets BEEZFE 1,238,533 1,133,025
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ARABHEE AEMN
OF THE COMPANY =
Share capital f& s 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves e 1,182,508 1,077,000
Total equity DB 1,238,533 1,133,025

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — B&MT 2 M B4R & B 75T ZERE 2 —5b17 ©
financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised ~ #ZS#ra VM HHEN S _EF A =+HE

for issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2020. ERoERIERM -
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
gREA i k=i
Director Director
o EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

54

RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIIFZ

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
B RIDEE ZERHRHE RE A wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%ETT AR%ETrE ARETE ARETT
(Note 32)  (Note 33(b)(i))  (Note 33(b){ii))
(Biat32) (W=E330))  (HaE33b)0)
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZ—\F-HA—B2&H 56,025 51,098 33,242 870,662 1,011,027
Comprehensive income ZHEkE
Profit for the year REZHEA - - - 161,216 161,216
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUas - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2HKGEEEE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,031,878 1,172,243
Transactions with owners BRRZR S
Dividends paid (Note 13) SRREHE13) - - - (39,218) (39,218)
At 31 December 2018 R-E—N\E+-F=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 992,660 1,133,025
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZT-NE—A—R 2% 56,025 51,098 33,242 992,660 1,133,025
Comprehensive income 2EKE
Profit for the year AEEEF - - - 144,726 144,726
Other comprehensive income Htv2EKE - - - - -
Total comprehensive income EENEETE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,137,386 1,277,751
Transactions with owners BRRERZRS
Dividends paid (Note 13) IRIRE(H313) - - - (39,218) (39,218)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,098,168 1,238,533

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN N~ —X
mEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIIFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2019 2018
—E-hE —T-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hizt AR¥TR AREFIT
Cash from operating activities RETHELEZHS
Profit before income tax FRET{S AR A 175,294 186,323
Adjustments for: FHEIER
Interest income FEWA 6 (3,813) (4,677)
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BRANER A B
through profit or loss SREE B R 6 (11,428) (16,994)
Loss allowance/(reversal of) loss allowance of U E SRR R
trade receivables and contract assets BREEZERERE/
(&m) 9 10,054 (6,232)
(Reversal of)/provision for obsolete and BERFHETE
slow-moving inventories (B[),/ Bt 9 (1,324) 1,093
Interest expenses FEZH 8 120 53
Reversal of loss allowance of [EME T E B A
loan receivables [ 6 - (7,500)
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B LB 9 - 452
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W BEREETE 9 20,229 19,339
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 1,092 =
Impairment of intangible assets mREERERE - 160
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BRANER A B
through profit or loss SREENFUE 7 (8,489) (6,612)
Provision of/(reversal) of impairment on other Hib R R E RS
receivables (%) 4,651 (1,509)
Government subsidies BU#E 8L 6 (4,005) (4,676)
Recognition of deferred income FERETLRA 6 (588) (1,789)
Operating cash flows before working HEES BRI 2L
capital changes Bemne 181,799 157,431
Decrease/(increass) in inventories FERD,/ () 3,635 (2,827)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables FEKE SRR (g M), (26,126) 1,761
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets AWBERL /(M) 15,619 (45,309)
Increase in other receivables, deposits Hih e ~ AT K
and prepayments TR FRIRIE N (12,060) (115,322)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables ENEB SERFEN,/ (D) 2,848 (3,496)
(Decreass)/increase in other payables Hfth eI R e & A
and accruals (R),/ (10,395) 168,749
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities AHEECRD),/ BN (5,877) 14,779
Increase/(decrease) in other tax payables HibeAwiEEm/ (Rd) 5,762 (4,482)
Cash generated from operations REEBEEZHE 155,205 171,284
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

56

AN Ao~ —1
mEREMER
For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F—NFF+-_A=+—HIIFZ
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZTR)
2019 2018
“E-1E T )\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR¥TR AREFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHELZHESRE
Cash generated from operations REXBEL RS 155,205 171,284
Income tax paid BERFEH (22,576) (32,418)
Interest paid BRFE (120) (63)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELZHSFE 132,509 138,813
Cash flows from investing activities REERELECHERE
Lease payment HER® o 18 (23,910) -
Purchase of bearer biological assets BEETCRENEE 16 (1,657) (305)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BELRE 17 (8,880) 9,797)
Purchase of construction in progress EETREIRE 19 (6,473) (23,461)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BELAAEFARRN
through profit or loss TREBE (1,360,000) (967,000)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEVEE - (160)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets ENROER B
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMRSHA 1,256,612 885,000
Decrease in loan receivables FEME TR D - 10,000
Interest received EIFE 3,813 4,677
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value RO EF ABHA
through profit or loss SREERRNE 11,428 16,994
Net cash used in investing activities REEBRFAZASTE (129,067) (84,052)
Cash flows from financing activities REXBELZRERE
Proceeds from government subsidies TR 4R B PG 5X0E 4,405 25,110
Repayment of loan from government authority BEBTEEER 39 - (620)
Dividend paid BERIRE 39 (28,798) (31,339)
Net cash used in financing activities MEXKMACESFEE (24,393) (6,849)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERREEEY
cash equivalents (RD) /#inBEE (20,951) 47,912
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~ FHABRERBELZEY 158,340 110,428
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRRSEEY 137,389 158,340
Analysis of the balance of cash and RERALEENER DI
cash equivalents -
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHEER 137,389 158,340

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company Law of
the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a state-owned
enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with
the approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin
Province, the Company was further converted into a joint stock
limited company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus
issue from capitalisation of retained profits in the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the
annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

—REH

RKRBR—NANNANNEFEEFEARKLM
B([PEDKIA—RBEAELE -
—NMABFTZAZTNRBE  RER
B RAREABIGY  AREA—HE
BEXEAR—BEREMERR - R
—NAARFNRTRE BEMREKHE
HNEZESHHE  ARARBRER—
BEROHBERAE - R—ANNFEA
— 8 ARRZREMBEERA RN IKE
— AR - BRE RN ETEAR
VAZETTHIAR ©

RATHER —ZEZE—FHAA - +MAH
EREMEXZMARQE(THRAT])
GEM_ET °

ARREBURENBBEREEDEK
SRERDHPERBEER - B
AR E B RN MIRE20

RABDEEMIA M BLE R EHER
FREBERRELE D PIHRE

EXETHRME

RAREEEMBRERARAZIIES
ABRENR TN - RmEHEAIN - ZF
BRI ERERNAE2HR FE °

(@ EpHIEA
RERAVBRERDIERESG
AR ASEMHE ST SRS E
B[ BB ERELER ] - AR
BREEBEAZM@RNES ﬁﬁki&i
XA BB ER([EBSTE
Al REZE) a8 LREMAN
e:tRE  BEEBEIZMERA

FIGEM#E %%J:m%EE'J(FGEMJ:m%E
Al ERMEEGEXEREB(A
BEDRBEAREMRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning from 1 January 2019. A summary of
the new and revised HKFRS applied by the Group is set out as
follows:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(FRIC)}-int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to Prepayment Features with Negative
HKFRS 9 Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtaiment or Settlement
HKFRS 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
HKAS 28

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
HKFRSs

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and financial
positions for the current and prior periods and/or on the
disclosures set out in the notes to consolidated financial
statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Change in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

Prior to the adoption of HKFRS 16, leases where substantially
all the rewards and risks of ownership of assets remained
with the lessor were accounted for as operating leases.
Operating lease rentals were recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Commitments under operating leases for future periods were
not recognised as liabilities.

Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the majority of operating leases
(except for short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low value assets) are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the 2018 reporting period,
as permitted under the specific transitional provisions in the
standard. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019. The new accounting policies are disclosed in
Note 2(j).

On transition to HKFRS 16, the Group has applied the
practical expedients permitted by the standard as follows:

= the accounting for operating leases with a remaining
lease term of less than 12 months at the date of initial
application as short-term leases; and

= the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

2. EXREHHEBEE)

(c)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

2. EXREHHEBEE)

Change in accounting policy and disclosures (c) EFEHRREBEZ#E(E)
(continued)
The Group has elected not to reassess whether a contract AEEDREENEHAERA HHE
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. For Feth—HENEE REENRE
contracts entered into before the transition date, the Group BEHE - HRNEB®EAR /HﬁZH'J =R
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 “Leases” AHAH  AREREFBGTE
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether an Arrangement EU%W%EWEEWD%E%(W%Eﬁ%
contains a Lease”. i%%; = El E%%%%Al%ﬁrﬁﬁi
—Ekﬁ% B EMEE R
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group reclassified the land REAEBH G REEANF 1655
use rights to right-of-use assets for presentation purpose. - REREH - AEEKLBE
REEF R RERAEEE
The table below summarises the impact of the adoption of TR R BT 73R4 2R 5
HKFRS 16 on the opening consolidated statement of financial 16BN _F—NEF— H S0kt
position as at 1 January 2019: ViR M BARRROTE
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts
reported at under
31 December HKFRS 16 at
2018 Reclassification 1 January 2019
R=ZB-—NF
BIER —A—BRiE
—E-N\F BERMBRE
+=A=+—8 A E1655
2Rz REE BEFoE 2R REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARET T ARET T
Non-Current assets FEREBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE = 15,522 15,522
Prepaid land lease payments ~ Faff it & 15,068 (15,068) =
Current assets MENEE
Prepaid land lease payments ~ Faf i< 454 (454) =

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in the PRC were
classified as prepaid lease payments as at 31 December
2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current and
non-current portion of prepaid land lease payments
amounting to RMB454,000 and RMB15,068,000, respectively
were reclassified to right-of-use assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEFBERME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation (d EBEMAEHMRR=-Z—HLF-—
of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the B—HMBRZUBRFEENZ
financial year beginning on 1 January 2019 and FET R - RIEETE B M|
have not been early adopted by the Group HEAREZE
The Group has not early applied the following new and ANE BRI R IR AT B AR (E
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not MR ER 2 FE] REEIERT BB TS
yet effective: AR
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts' BRETBHRE  RRELO

AERIZE1 755
Amendments to Definition of a Business? BRUIEMELE EEHTEE?
HKFRS 3 EUEK v
BEIA
Amendments to Sales or Contribution of BRI EE REH A&
HKFRS 10 Assets between an A0 RE ARG EE
and HKAS 28 Investor and its BERTERIE  EEWNEE
Associate or Joint Venture® 28 ZIBETAR HESKERS
Amendments to Definition of Material* BEBSTHERE EXNER
HKAS 1 and 15k RBE B R
HKAS 8 ZERIZE85RE
BEIAR
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark BRI IREE FIREAERE
HKFRS 9, Reform? AIZE95E « BA
HKAS 39 and SE%ERIZE39
HKFRS 7 55 M E B
REERIE TR
ZAEETAR
L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 1 RZB-—F—-—A—BRZE&MAZ
FEHMAER -

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which 2 BRARKBERA—ZT_TF—HA—
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period Heiz aABN e EFERERGE
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Bl B EBE HREEWE -

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 EE B #Ask 2 & s 2 FEHABE
determined. B e

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. 4 RZZE-ZFE-A—BszgFAnz

FREARER -

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application K%ﬂ%%ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁgﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ A LaFE]
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs above will have REERT R AR B RELNA R
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements ARHZEMBRENEHEAY

in the foreseeable future. e
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

()  Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
|dentifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’'s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Consolidation (continued)

(il

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivables.

Impairment testing of the investment in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants managed by
the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities of the
transformation of biological assets for sale or into agricultural
product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each balance
sheet date. The fair value of these biological assets is
determined based on active market prices in the local market
with reference to comparable age, breed and genetic merit.
The gain or loss arising on initial recognition and subsequent
changes in fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of
biological assets is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less any impairment
losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual value
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment property carried at cost

The Group transfers a property from property, plant and
equipment to investment property when there is a change
of use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for its own use in the ordinary course
of business.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

0)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated over the lease term of the
leasehold land.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

(k) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation, and
is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses. No
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time as the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction expenditure
and other direct costs of construction. Construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when the asset being
constructed becomes available to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Intangible assets

(i)

(i

(il

Purchased know-how and prescription

Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the financial period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the assets
is available for use. Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets acquired
through separate purchase are recognised as intangible
assets at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (i) above.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
formula. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Financial assets

(@) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value

(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

©

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other losses in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3(b) for further
details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in current
liabilities.

(g) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resource will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprised lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(s) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year- end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(s) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial assets at FVOCI, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognized until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in the
defined contribution retirement plans managed by the
local government authorities whereby they are required
to contribute to the schemes at fixed rates of the
employees’ salary costs. The Group’s contributions to
these plans are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment (see note 2(0)(d) for a description of
impairment policy). If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied or service performed, stated net of
rebates and returns. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of returns on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the customers
is recognized at the point that the control of the inventory
have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon
the acceptance of the products by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contractual liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(z7 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

(aa) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(m). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value, which has been prepared on
the basis of the management’s assumptions and estimates.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
management judgement as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in note 37.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and purchase
know-how and prescription of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales
related taxes.

A
AEEETBXEBRUENDHPER
BEEM- WARHEAMNWERE
YEREBREE - 4 - BEHRLE
fll $H EHRRATURR S FE ©

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZT—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Sales of Chinese medicines and FREE R B AR EHE
pharmaceutical products 645,885 647,672

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating segment of the
Group, no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)
6. OTHER INCOME 6. HaA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT—)\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARBT T ARETIT
Bank interest income HRITHEWA 374 4,677
Other interest income At FI SN 3,439 -
Government subsidies (Note) B aL (HraE) 4,005 4,676
Recognition of deferred income TERIRIE B A 30 588 1,789
Yield gains on financial assets at fair BAREG ABERNSRE
value through profit or loss & E R R 11,428 16,994
Reversal of loss allowance of loan FEWE RSt )
receivables 26 - 7,500
Reversal of loss allowance of trade FEUWE 5 BR R Es 18
receivables B E - 7,742
Reversal of provision for obsolete and ~ FEE N A i8 17 S B4
slow-moving inventories [0 1,324 -
Compensation received BEEWA 2,422 4,426
Penalty income EIE PN 291 1,639
Others EAftb 5,616 2,133
29,487 51,576
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group received Mt RBE-_ZT-—NFR-_ZT-—N\F+=A
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC, which =+t BLEE AEBESHERRLA
aimed at the general financing of the business and technology development of TBNH#ANEE  EERNEENER R
the Group. RZERRE—REES -
7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hfttlzs
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Net gain on financial assets at fair value through AR EFABZNEREER
profit or loss F s 8,483 6,612
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BERKA
2019 2018
—g-nE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
Interest expenses on a loan from government BT # R E 5k 2 Fll 8. &
authority - 53
Bank interest expenses RITFEER 120 =
120 58
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BRETSBIADGF
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARBT T ARET T
Profit before income tax for the year REZ RS ADR A 2 H
is arrived at after charging: B %= IE:
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEKA
(excluding additional provision for, (D EIEIL I K&
and write off of obsolete and MsEREE RFETE)
slow-moving inventories) 100,054 105,675
Provision for obsolete and BEEREIETEERE
slow-moving inventories 22 - 1,093
Provision for/(reversal of) loss JEUWE SR K &
allowance for trade receivables and BREEZEEEEG
contract assets (#E) 24 10,054 (6,232)
Provision for/(reversal of) loss E b fEUNGRIE 2
allowance on other receivables EiERE(BE) 25 4,651 (1,509)
Auditor’s remuneration ZERT NS 314 308
Impairment of intangible assets EmREERE
(included in cost of sales) (B ASHERLAN) 21 - 160
Research and development cost TR A 11,632 334
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TAAS - HhAH B HE 5
payments (included in cost of sales) (FIASHERA) 18 - 452
Depreciation of property, Wz - BB KRR
plant and equipment e 17 20,229 19,339
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18 1,092 =
Employee benefits expenses and BTIRMNEARANEIR
human resources cost ERA(PIBEREESER
(excluding directors’ and EEME) :
supervisors’ remuneration):
Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 125,724 18,649
Sales commission Ey3=Clikn 93,805 102,369
Pension scheme contributions RINEFT B 2,660 2,381

EMEEEREACEXRNHERAH
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a

Income tax represents:

. FREBix

(@ FEHREsE :

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT
PRC corporate income tax HR B 7R ZE TS AR
— Current year —RFE 31,635 23,876
— (Overprovision)/underprovision in —BAFE(BERE)
prior years BETRE (449) 1,807
Deferred taxation (Note 31) EIEFRLIB (f15237) (618) (576)
30,568 25,107

The PRC corporate income tax is provided according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which became effective
from 1 January 2008. In accordance with the new tax law,
an unified enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-invested
enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the Jilin
Provincial Science and Technology Bureau ( & #f & &} £ 3
fiE2 ). The Company is entitled to a reduced PRC corporate
Income tax rate of 15% for another three consecutive years
commenced since year 2018.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZET)
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FIEHiZ (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) BHEIZHESTEINIZERAH
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: RYRWOT :
2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Profit before income tax B PTAS B A A 175,294 186,323
National tax calculated at PRC enterprise BB EMEHE15%
income tax rate of 15% (2018: 15%) ZE—)\F :15%)
FTEA T 26,294 27,948
Tax effect of non-taxable income BEGRKRANT ST E - 4,172
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses NAHIF AT NS E 5,341 101
(Overprovision)/underprovision in prior years BAFE(GRERE),/
BETE (449) 1,807
Deferred tax on temporary differences in prior @7 & E Bk =58 7 IR AE T B
year (618) (677)
Income tax expense FTiSfisz 30,568 25,107

EMEEEREACEXRNHERAH
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Group for the year of RMB144,726,000 (2018: RMB161,216,000)
and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the year (2018:
560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2019 includes a profit of RMB147,102,000 (2018:
RMB162,198,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 33).

DIVIDENDS

The Company declared a special dividend of RMB7 cents per share
on 8 May 2019 and paid on 26 August 2019.

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BREF
HE-_ZT—hF+-_A=t+—HLHF
B BRENZF THIBEFAAEBE %
B A B FIAR#144,726,0007T (=
T—N\F : AR¥161,216,0007T) & F
N B 217 I 19 560,250,000 0% ( = Z — )\
£ : 560,250,0000%) 5t & -

HREZEZE—_ZE—NER_ZT—NF+=
A=1+—HItFETEBZEHELRA
i - M EE 5| SRREEERF o

RRBER ABGEER

HE_ZT—hF+_A=+—HLEE
A NREHEE ARG R B2E R A
R#147,102,000(ZZF—/\F : AR
#162,198,0007T) ' 5% H E R4 A )
2 B iR R R IR (PIEE33) ©

Bﬁ%\

RRFER ﬂiﬁﬂ)\ﬁedﬁ%
E'JHX,%#Hx}\EﬁW RZF—AFN
AZ+RBXf-

ARRIY TEEHNENEE—FT—NEF

—f—:ﬂz—i——ElLtEEZEHX/HHH 8
—E-N\FEE)

2019 2018

—E-hF —N\&F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Special dividends FERIAR B 39,218 39,218
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION

(@) Directors’ remuneration (@)
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

14. EERSRITRAEME

EEME

FR - RBECGEM EHHRBIREH
(RAEEBIN(5622F ) 3831 K&
(RAI(BKBEEZMEER)RO)DH
2 REMBENESHMET

2019 —E_NE
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2019 Total
fees EHe - ER bonus contributions —E—-hE
EZHe REMAR BERL  BRSER Fell e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR%TR AR%Tx AR%¥Tx AR%Tx
(Note (i)
(Bzz0)
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 278 248 - 526
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 218 186 20 424
Zhao Bao Gang ) - 176 110 45 331
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 89 20 169
Zhang Vi RE - 110 122 15 247
Xu Xiang Fu GAEPS - 115 11 15 241
Independlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin SEM - 68 - - 68
Gao Yong Cai SKA - - 10 - 10
Tian Jie 4 - 29 10 - 39
- 1,054 886 115 2,055
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration ez - () HIBIEA BFNEE S HERBE

#UAREREE2EAEEL
EEE  EARARATELR
MISERRETE

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSHRITHRAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) EE=M<(E)
2018 —E—N\E
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension

Directors’ benefits  Discretionary fund 2018 Total

fees & 2E bonus contributions  —ZE—/\fF

B REMNEG MIETEAL  RARSER L

RVB'OO0O ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETE ARBTT ARETT ARETR

(Note (i)
(Hizt)
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 290 912 = 1,202
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 225 248 20 493
Zhao Bao Gang = - 179 89 47 315
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 44 20 124
Zhang Yi (appointed on RE(ZE-N\&F
8 June 2018) NANBEZE) - 66 174 8 248
Xu Xiang Fu (appointed on BRX(ZE—)\E
8 June 2018) NANBEZE) - 65 89 8 162
Independlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin (appointed on SER(CEN\E
8 June 2018) 7HJ\H%§§{ ) - 30 10 - 40
Gao Yong Cai =) - - 10 - 10
Tian Jie m - 28 10 - 38
Qiu Fang Ping (resigned on BEE(ZE—N\E
24 April 2018) HA=+TMBEMT) = - - - -
= 943 1,586 103 2,632
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Bz < () BBEAAFHE B 2 HERE
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having # UAREREE2EAEEL
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, BEE  EARBRRAELR
individual performance and comparable market statistics. MISEIRIRHETE
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB882,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
RMB881,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018) are as

14. EERSRITBRAEME ()

(b) BERITBRAEME
AEBMAARREEEN 2 HE
#{E31,000,0008 T(RHE=T
—NEFT-A=1t—RLEEHRE
MAR¥B82,000T KRB E=T

follows: —N\FE+_A=+—HIFERE
R ARKS881,0007T) @ EFFIBW
T
2019 —E-hF
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits  Discretionary Pension fund 2019 Total
F =1 bonus  contributions —E-hE
R E h % BETEAL BIRE MR et e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR AR¥ETR AR¥TR AR¥TR
(Note (i))
(E)
Supervisors: 2%
Qiao Xiao Chun BELs 68 50 15 133
Wang Ying Xu TEMB 35 3 15 53
Yan Li Yu EEEx 32 3 15 50
135 56 45 236
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration HiaE - () BB EARTHEE SHER

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

#o THERG2EALEL
EEE  BEARFRAELR
MIZBURREE
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued)

14, EERSHRITHRAEME ()

(b) ERITBAEME(H)

2018 —E-N\F
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2018 Total
e - 2R bonus contributions —E—)\F
R E Az BIETEAL RS EHR el
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARET T ARETIT
(Note (i))
(Hra20)
Supervisors: Ex:
Qiao Xiao Chun BEE
(appointed on (ZB—N\E
8 June 2018) NANBEZRT) 40 40 8 88
Wang Ying Xu THEB 31 3 15 49
Yan Li Yu (appointed on BEE(ZE—N\F
8 June 2018) NANBEZM) 18 30 8 56
Wu Wei Men (resigned on 24 RFR(=ZZ— \F
April 2018) MA=+mA#
£) 26 81 5 112
Zhao Gang (resigned on 24  #5[@I( = Z— )\ &
April 2018) AZ+MBE#ET) 8 40 - 77
152 194 36 382
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration BtaE < () RIBHEARFHEE SRR
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having FH O THEFSLRXEREFRK
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, BEE AAKRIERAELLE
individual performance and comparable market statistics. THIBEIEBET o
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included two
Directors (2018: four Directors) whose remuneration were
set out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the remaining
three (2018: one) highest paid, non-director employee
whose remuneration was below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB882,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
RMB881,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018) are as
follows:

14. EERSRITBRAEME ()

(c)

LEREHFMAL

FARhEERSTMATBEERE
BEFE(ZZE—N\F WmWE=E=E)
HEMeFER EX@BEHH - 5
N REBEBR =R HIIEE
EEB(ZE—\F : —R) ZHEH
{E741,000,0008 T (2= — N1
F+-_A=+—HILEFEHERA
R#882,000c KB E T — N\F
+ZA=+—HILEFEBRERAR
#881,0007T) « HEMEFFIBLT ¢

2019 2018
-l VAN
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥4 - 285 & E b A 461 271
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEEIHRR - 20

461 291
Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in (a) fREX @B HENESHEI -

above, the emoluments of supervisors and other senior
management whose profiles are included in the Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management section of this
report were below HK$1,000,000, equivalent to RMB882,000
(2018: equivalent to RMB881,000) for the year ended 31
December 2019 and for the year ended 31 December 2018.

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

BNERAREESE R ERE
EBEE|—fNEEREMESRE
BAENHEREBEEZE-F—NLF
+—A=+—BHIFEEREHE_Z
—NE+_A=Z+—HILEFEHEK
1,000,000 7T © HHE R AR
882,0007C(=ZF—\F : HERA
R #881,0007T) °

BE_T-NFR-_FT-N\F+=
A=1t—BLLFE AEELEMR
%L R o M B B S HERB 2 F
REMAIR AR KB E 2 82
B SkiFRER B -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

15.

16.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The local
government authority is responsible for the entire pension obligation
payable to retired employees.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to RMB2,820,000 (2018:
RMB2,520,000). The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with the Scheme.

15.

RRERIEE

TE R FCR ARG E
RIBTEARS SR ER  AKE
2 E BT E TR EARNE
BETORREN G & (%8 - &
bt AEEEZABEREENHEBIE
B —E B DA ZE IR o TR
BEHEMNERKNESENZEERASE
AEffaR -

REE-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—80I1tF
&+ NEE AT R R KR RIS B3R
ABARE2,820,000T(ZF—\F : AR
#2,520,0007T) ° ANER ENF & H 0B BE 5%
ETEIMERRARBEAMERESE

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. FTEBEVEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: T REMEERE
2019 2018
—E-nE  —TNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFIT
Ginseng, at cost A2 LNE 13,402 11,745
Vineyard, at cost BE - BRAME - =
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+=ZA=+—RAZKEHE 13,402 11,745
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZT)
16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. TEBREVEE (&)
Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: PR EMEEREELE
2019 2018
—E-hE  —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBFIT
Ginseng AS
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZREE 11,745 11,440
Additions during the year FRRE 1,657 305
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ RA=+—RHAZKHE 13,402 11,745
Vineyard HE
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEmE - —
Written off b= - _
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HZKHE - -
13,402 11,745
The carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued at their A2 REEREEERVBKAGE -
original costs. These assets are in their early stage of cultivation ZEEERNEEREGBYE - B &
and preparation and active market prices are not available. In EHRTE - BN EZRAVIEK AR
addition, the Directors are of the view that the original costs would HERZERER ZANERE -

approximate their fair values at this stage of their development.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 1% - BMERRE

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
HE #8
gF RER#es ERE BT @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETTT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Cost: A
At 1 January 2018 RZE-\F—A—H 152,078 110,126 6,880 4,239 273,323
Additions hE = 7,191 2576 30 9,797
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-\&+=A=+-H 152,078 117,317 9,456 4,269 283,120
Additions NE 1,651 4173 2,974 82 8,880
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+ZA=+—-H 153,729 121,490 12,430 4,351 292,000
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE
At 1 January 2018 W=Z—\E—HA—H 38,105 62,924 3,666 2495 107,190
Charge for the year (Note 9)  FRX 8 (A7:29) 4,462 13,689 808 380 19,339
At 31 December 2018 R-E-—N\E+-A=1—H 42 567 76,613 4474 2875 126,529
Charge for the year (Note 9) RS (4:29) 5,160 13,258 1,389 499 20,229
At 31 December 2019 RZZE-NF+-A=+—-H 47,727 89,871 5,863 3,297 146,758
Carrying amount: FmfE
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=+—-H 106,002 31,619 6,567 1,054 145,242
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\E+=-A=1-H 109,511 40,704 4,982 1,304 156,591

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AAREZT)

18. LEASES 18. HE
The Group as a Lessee AEBERAEBEA
The Group has land lease arrangements used in its operations. AEERBELEFEANTHEES
Lump sum payments were made upfront to acquire the leased 49 o BERBIEE — AN RUARES A
land from the owners with lease periods of 45 to 50 years, and WEE T EH A4 =0 F MR E i - I
no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these BREELE THENERTEHEE
land leases. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and N —RiE  ARETARAKE

subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a)

Prepaid land lease payments

MO ER R D HREEE -

(@ TFENLHEE

2019 2018
—g-nE - NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

As at 1 January Rn—AH—H 15,522 15,974
Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 FERB ARG FE 165
k7% (15,522) -
Amortisation i - (452)
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - 15,522
Analysed for reporting purposes as: PEE B BT
Non-current assets ERENE E - 15,068
Current assets mENEE - 454
- 15,522

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)
18. LEASES (continued) 18. #HE (&)
The Group as a Lessee (continued) AEBIEAEABEA(E)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FEAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and FRAREE 2 EAREEREIMBER
the movements during the year are as follows: FEnT -
Land use rights
b f5F FAAE
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
As at 1 January Rn—H—H - -
Impact on adoption of HKFRS 16 JERE B EERIF165%
2R 15,522 -
Additions NE 23,910 -
Depreciation charge TEMX (1,092) -
As at 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 38,340 -
(¢) The amounts recognized in profit or loss in relation to € REZPERHEEREERIELD
leases are as follows: T
2019
—ZE-hEF
RMB’000
ARET T
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENERS 1,092
Total amount recognised in profit or loss B ERKIERRE 1,092
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 10. EEIRE
2019 2018
—E-hE  —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 67,588 44,127
Additions IR 6,473 23,461
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8~ 74,061 67,588
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMIBATINRE
The Company
PN
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Unlisted investment, at cost JELETRE - HAME 85,000 5,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries RSB /B~ B FRIE - 6,032
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENLRIEYNGIE e (69,342) (5,000)
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2019 were as

20. RHIBARMNIRE (EF)

R=Z—-NE+=A=+—H KWEA

follows: AIFFIBAT ¢
Country of incorporation Issued and fully Percentage of
and operation and paid share capital/ ordinary shares  Principal
Name of subsidiary legal entity status registered capital held directly  activity
AR R BRTRAR EERE
WBAREE RENERRATRRILN BE/EMER EERGHEIL FEEH
ENERTEREMEEERAA] HE - BREEAR AR #5,000,0007T 100% EEEE
PRC, limited liability company RMB5,000,000 Dormant
AN REREIRRERAH E - BREEAF AE#20,000,0007 100% SUERS HEREER
(TRERD" PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
health products
EMRERMAEEREEAF hE - AREELH AR 20,000,000 100% HERDHAHREBE
([RERm])? Rm
PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
beverages and pre-
packaged food
EMERERHEREERAF hE - ARAELH A& #20,000,0007C 100% HARERES
([REFHE])® PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
EMEREBEDRRAERAT hE - AREALH A& #20,000,0007C 100% HAREER
([Rg])H PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Not yet commenced
business

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries classified as current
assets/(liabilities) respectively in the Company’s balance sheet are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

#1 As at 31 December 2019, & #EJR had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be
fully paid-up before 10 September 2026.

#2 As at 31 December 2019, KEE R had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be
fully paid-up before 1 February 2023.

#3 As at 31 December 2019, £FEFHE had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to
be fully paid-up before 30 January 2023.

#4 As at 31 December 2019, &8 had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be fully

paid-up before 1 March 2038.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. B R RANRE(E)

21.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period or at any time during both years.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

P /8 2 =) 138 4 X e o A R Bk P fE 6 R Y
ERIREEITEREBES

21. BEE

RMB’000
ARETIT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 67,975
Additions #n 160
At 31 December 2018 and RZF-N\F+ZA=+—HK
31 December 2019 —F-NF+=A=1+—H 68,135
Accumulated amortisation and Rt EBERBERSSE :
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2018 RZZE—N\E—H—H 67,975
Impairment B 160
At 31 December 2018 and RZBE-—N\F+-A=+—HK
31 December 2019 —E-hEF+=ZA=+—H 68,135

Carrying amount:
At 31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

BRMEE :
R_E—N\F+_A=+—8K
—Z-NF+=-—A=+—H
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 21.

Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through
research and development cooperation with independent third
parties and were all acquired in cash.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future
economic benefits generated from these assets. No impairment
loss was recognised for the current year (2018: RMB160,000).

‘AR (&)
P R BT Ty BB ST 4 = 7 A {E R
% BRBUBSHA -

FRN EERBEZSEERAREEZL
R R AR T PTE A G R By 2 BRE
B  AEEEERAREBE(ZZ=—N
& AR¥160,0007T) °

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78

2019 2018
—B-NEF —Z—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Raw materials R E 20,119 18,607
Work in progress R 25,386 29,462
Finished goods BURK 5,734 6,805
51,239 54,874

Less: Provision for obsolete and B BREREEE ERE
slow-moving inventories (1,094) (2,418)
50,145 52,456

During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision on obsolete
and slow-moving inventories amounted to RMB1,324,000 was
written back (2018: provision of RMB1,093,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no obsolete and slow-
moving inventories were written off (2018: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, no obsolete and slow-
moving inventories which the provision were already made in prior
years, were written off (2018: Nil).
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23. #AAEfFABENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2019 2018
e A it
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR¥ETT

Current assets mENEE

Unlisted financial assets FIMERMEE 683,483 571,612
The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BEARBEFAEBENEREEALEBE
are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy (note 37(f). AREBRTE=BRFITEI7H) °

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 24. EWEBSRFIRENEE
ASSETS

(@) Trade receivables (@ EWREZEX
2019 2018
31 December 31 December
—E-AF —ET-)\F
+=A=+—-8 +=-—A=t+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARET T

Trade receivables U E 5 8RR 295,838 269,712
Less: Loss allowance B ERE s (35,684) (20,386)
Trade receivables — net RUNE SRR — 558 260,154 249,326

()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period ) AEBBRALTEZIEP
of 180 days to its trade customers. 1808 22 EH -

—
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 24.
ASSETS (continued)
(@) Trade receivables (continued)
(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance of trade
receivables, is as follows:

EBYEZERRENEE(H)
() MEUCE 5 AR ()

(i)

REZHZAHRNGKEKRE
SEEAEREE  BRES
R BRER DTN

2019 2018
—E-NF —EF-)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Current BNHE 66,993 59,921
31-90 days 31—90H 53,302 66,108
91-180 days 91—180H 30,118 71,102
More than 180 days HB®180H 109,741 52,195

260,154 249,326

@iy ~ The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, these receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the aging from
billing. See Note 37(a) for further information about
expected credit loss provision. Impairment losses are
recognised in consolidated income statement within
“administrative expenses”. See note 2(0) for information
about how impairment losses are calculated.
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B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHZT)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 24. EWESERIESHNEE (&)

ASSETS (continued)

(a) Trade receivables (continued) (@ EWEZERME)
(i) (continued) (i) (%)
The movements in the loss allowance during the year FANEEBENEHIT ¢
are as follows:

2019 2018
31 December 31 December
—g-nE T )\F
t=A=+—-R +t=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Opening balance FEERH 20,386 23,898
Addition/(Reversal) N, (B ) B 15,298 (3,512)
Closing balance FRERR 35,684 20,386

Loss allowance had been made for the estimated
irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of goods.
The loss allowance was determined by the directors
with reference to past default experience.

(iv)  The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade (iv)
receivables approximates their fair value.

BEBEEIRLEEY 2 b
AAAAREEREL - EF
E2ZBREHRRERETEH
BRESE -

EXZRR BRRESERRLZ
FREEREAAEMES -

(b) Contract assets (b) EHEE

2019 2018

31 December 31 December

—E-hE —E)\F

t=RA=t+—-8 +=A=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARBETFIT

Contract assets BHEE 68,858 84,477
Less: Loss allowance o SRS (33,924) (39,168)
Contract assets — net BHEE—F58 34,934 45,309

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HthfEWRIE - G RFAMFR

PREPAYMENTS |
2019 2018
—E-hE —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBET T ARBETFIT
Deposits and prepayments & RIERFIE 42,979 24,706
Advances to staff, net M8 TR - F5 21,994 51,442
Other receivables, net E e EIE - 558 22,771 9,008
Bills receivables RN EE 145,073 140,252
232,817 225,408

During the year, no provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments was made (2018: Nil).

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, certain of the Group’s advances
to staff and other receivables were considered to be impaired. For
other receivables, impairment is measured as 12-month expected
credit losses since there has been no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The impaired receivables related to staff
and debtors that were in financial difficulties and the following loss
allowance has been made.

FA - WEHTTES REMNFREELRE
BECCE-N\F:E)-

RZE—NLEERZZE-—N\NF+=A
=+—H AEBRBEIBANHE TR
EREMEBGRIBHERAERE © ghH
HEWFIEME @ BEFEA12(EATE
HEEERE  REESEVREREEER
BB I AR R - ZED RENER
FIAREER BN B TAMERA
B BEEECEHUTEERE -

Advances to staff Other receivables
BmE IR Hih e R1E

2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NAF —TN\F ZE-AEF —TN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT AR%®TrT ARBTT
Gross amounts ks 29,518 55,347 25,353 10,558
Less: Loss allowance B R (7,524) (3,905) (2,582) (1,550)
Net amounts HEE 21,994 51,442 22,771 9,008
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25.
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group does not hold any collateral over the above balances.
The movement in the loss allowance of advances to staff and other

HBWRE - T RAAK

5 (&)

AREEYEH EAEHRFTHTMAER
fn o AR 8 T 2R M H 8 WKk IR &

receivables during the year, is as follows: BEREENEEINT
2019 2018
—E-hE —ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,455 6,964
Addition/(reversal) of loss allowance EiE R ES I, () 4,651 (1,509)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 10,106 5,455

26. LOANS RECEIVABLES 26. EEWWEFK

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT

Loan receivables due within 1 year
Less: loss allowance

R—FRNEIEZ U E R

BB

Loan receivables due within 1 year — net

R—FAZIHz B ER—

R -

(i) A loan of RMB10,000,000 due from an independent third
party was unsecured and interest free. The loan was fully

repaid within 2018.

) EBUBIYE=Z7THWERARE
10,000,000 T A EHK IR R BB © 3%
BEREE_Z—\FALIBEE -

EMEEEREACEXRNHERAH
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

26. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 26.

(i)  The movements in the specific loss allowance for loan
receivables during the year are as follows:

BWRER(E)
() 4 POt FEUK B SR SR B
T -

2019 2018
—g-nE  ZFNE
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

At 1 January Rn—HA—H - 7,500
Reversal (Note 6) el (41i76) - (7,500)
Written off biEist - _
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 - -

(i) The Directors consider the carrying amount of loan
receivables approximates their fair value.

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 27.

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to RMB137,389,000 (2018:
RMB158,340,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. ETE Z R
The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is LATRERZEZABERNE S RZRD
as follows: BREC AT -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREBTT
Current BNHA 1,552 4,390
31-90 days 31—90H 4,406 3,578
Over 90 days im0 H 28,595 23,737
34,553 31,705
The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90 to AEEESHERAZFHEEHR AR
180 days. £180H -
Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade ERNESERETERBEREEREES
purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of trade HoEBEZRRENEZRFR 2 REER
payables approximates their fair value. HERAREEE °
29. LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 29. BB ER

Loan was obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau for the
purpose of research and development activities of the Group. The
loan is unsecured and bear interest at one year term saving interest
rate promulgated by The People’s Bank of China plus 0.3% per
annum. The loan is repayable by instalments until July 2022 as

1 S B R B B B SR A £ B Y AT B
EEZH c  REERAEER - P
ARBITEMBH —FHREEFE0.3E
HEMEGE - ZEZEHRERTIAFR
RZZEZZFt+AAIH EERER :

follows:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Within one year —FA 1,860 1,240
After one year but within two years R—FREMRFNRN 490 620
After two years but within five years RRERERFA - 490
2,350 2,350
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)

30. DEFERRED INCOME 30. IEZLEWA
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 45,759 27,114
Arising from government grants BB 400 20,434
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) REZEAFT A KIEES6) (588) (1,789)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 45,571 45,759
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HE@EE 45,571 45,759
Portion classified as current liabilities NEARBEESD (989) (589)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities DI RIERBEEED 44,582 45,170

AEBER T —NFRESHMHE TR
BREESVRBEH X FAEBENHE

RERENELEEFE—SHEZ
R f B 49 A R #400,000(ZZF— N
F : AR¥20,434,0007T) °

During the year ended 2019, the Group received government
grants of approximately RMB400,000 (2018: RMB20,434,000)
from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan County Finance
Bureau in relation to support investments on plant and equipment
for further research and development of the Group’s intangible

assets.
31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 31. IEZEMEH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BIEFFSTHEERBE 2N ¢
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Deferred tax assets: REFIBEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — AR IE1 218 A & Uk B 2 B IE
more than 12 months HIBEE (1,510) (944)
Deferred tax liabilities: RIEFIEAE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after  — #& A B E121E A & U @] 7 FEIE
more than 12 months HIBEE - 52
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities, net RERIE(EE) BEFHE (1,510) (892)
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

31. IEZEMEH(E)
EIEFTSREE B BB H M T -

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as

follows:
2019 2018
—E-AF —ETNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
As at 1 January n—H—H (892) (316)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RIBRAET A K £10(@) (618) 76)
(1,510) (892)

FREEHBAEENABNESHNT -

The movements during the year in the deferred tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities BEEHESRE
2019 2018
—E-NF —ETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
At 1 January n—H—H 52 =
(Credited)/debited to profit or loss (Note 10(a) HBEA(GEA) /%
(K1:E10(a)) (52) 52
At 31 December ®wt+=—A=+—H - 52
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

31. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

31. IEZEFTSEB(E)

Deferred tax assets BEREEE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTIT
At 1 January R—A—H (944) (316)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RIBREAETAK£10() (566) (628)
As at 31 December R+ZA=+—H (1,510) (944)
The deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised at the balance sheet NEEABRAZELCHRB(EE) BE
date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated depreciation R B NERFTER R ZBLEFIA
allowances.
32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. A
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B & o] e o
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each Rk EAR#0.1070H)
NERR 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMBO0.10 each FREEARB0.107TH
HI 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. A AR EEEBERLRBEEDN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY S
(@) Balance sheet of the Company (@) ZTAEMEBEEEER
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2019 2018
“E-hE —T-N\E
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
/ir73 ARETR ARETT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERER
Non-current assets FREEE
Bearer biological assets N EMEE 13,402 11,745
Property, plant and equipment ER G 140,607 150,627
Investment properties RENEME 2,098 2,854
Right-of-use assets ERERE 38,340 =
Prepaid land lease payments B THe - 15,068
Construction in progress HEETRE 74,061 67,588
Investment in subsidiaries NGNS 20 85,000 5,000
Intangible assets BYEE - -
Deferred tax assets ERERIBEE 1,510 944
355,018 253,826
Current assets REEE
Inventories Br& 48,198 50,474
Trade receivables U E 5 8RR 259,618 249,326
Contract assets BHERE \ 34,934 45,309
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HinEs0s - 51 RENFE 231,015 223,940
Amounts due from subsidiaries EURFTBARZE 20 - 6,032
Prepaid land lease payments B LitEE - 452
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss  RA /B ABRA S RIEE 683,483 571,612
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 129,533 157,697
1,386,781 1,304,842
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables JERTE S8R 33,518 31,481
Contract liabiliies anaf 8,903 14,779
Other payables and accruals Hiv AR ETE A 268,292 278,032
Amounts due to subsidiaries BB ARZE 20 69,342 5,000
Deferred income EERA 989 589
Income tax payable B FiSHt 29,255 20,645
Other tax payables HiENHIR 22,765 17,071
Loan from government authority BB ER 1,860 1,240
Dividend payable FERRRE 19,746 9,326
454,670 378,163
Net current assets MEEEFE 932,111 926,679
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHEE 1,287,129 1,180,505
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. A AR EEEBERLRBEEDN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 2E (&)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (@) ALAFMEEEEBER(E)
As at 31 December
Rt=A=t-H
2019 2018
“g-nE  ZFNE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

it ARBTR ARETT

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Loan from government authority T E 490 1,110
Deferred income EEWA 44,582 45170
Deferred tax liabilities ELHERRE - 52
45,072 46,332
Net assets EEFE 1,242,057 1,134,173
EQUITY i
Share capital A 32 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 33(b) 1,186,032 1,078,148
Total equity EmlE 1,242,057 1,134,173
These financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEVBHRENR_ZE_TF A
issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2020. =T HESEEhE RIERM -
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
5R A ik
Director Director
EE EZE
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33. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 33. KRR EESBREHEN
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company

25 (&)
(b) AATRENEE

Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRIBRE EERSBEE RE&F st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETET
(Note i) (Note i)
(Hiai) (Hitii)
At 1 January 2018 RZT—\F—H—H 51,098 33,242 870,828 955,168
Profit for the year REERT - 162,198 162,198
Dividends paid SRR E - (39,218) (39,218)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\5F
+-—F=+—8 51,098 33,242 993,808 1,078,148
Profit for the year REEHF - 147,102 147,102
Dividends paid THRBRE - (39,218) (39,218)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—N5F
+-B=+—8 51,098 33,242 1,101,692 1,186,032
(i)  Share premium iy BDEE

The Company’s share premium account represents the
premium arising from shares issued at a price in excess
of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and
the Company’s articles of association, the Company
and its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate 10 percent of
their annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory surplus reserve account.
When the balance of such reserve reaches 50 percent
of these entities’ share capital, any further appropriation
is optional. The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised
to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares.
However, such statutory surplus reserve must be
maintained at a minimum of 25 percent of share capital
after such issuance.

(ii)

ARAREERABES
REEZEREITIRNE
H 28 e

EERBERFEE

BEAERRERARARRA
RIERRMAA - A a REAR
BB A RINBRBEFESE
E5E% - AREH10%8F
ERTEMAELTERGRHE
FO - ExABEENER
EZERRRAZ50% @ A
NAIAETEEERE—F
BEHFRIE - AERBEEA
BIERMBEERENBRESK
BATHIRR - AT @ AT PR 3547
BAEATEBRBEARLER
MRS #I25% ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UANREZT)
34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 34. BEXREIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments REER - AEBEFTAEREREN
contracted for but not provided for as follows: BAASELR -
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Acquisition of intangible assets WisER &= 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  BEAYIE « B N & 171 171
1,921 1,921
35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BEALRS
Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key FRNHEFTEETEENE B @BEA
management during the year comprised only remuneration paid to TRGEBREANTESZHHE - H
the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the financial Bl S B 15 R i sk 14 ©
statements.
Saved as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial BRI EGREMBHREEME D TR
statements, the Group has the following transactions with related SN REBEEREEH A TR S ¢
parties:
2019 2018
—E-NF —ETN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARET T
Salaries paid to a close family member TREHETESEN
of a director HEFB - 47
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXEEE

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes judgements to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided by
adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings. Adjusted
capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity less
unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2019 and 2018 was 0.2% and
0.2% respectively, calculated as follows:

BEXER
AEBEEEEAZIZHAREREAE
[ R 5 4B A 2 BV RE ) 1 T 5 58 B R fe 7K
FHREEZEMERBEEBALRESE
ERANRE - SESBRRAIELDR -

AEEREGNERHEARERRRG
REE - LEFEHEERSEEKTHE
RIFH)E RARR T R AV 4T BE RARE BN
TRARERREENGE I @BRREH
REEE  THEEEHERENZLHE

ZRIREBVEH H T

AEFNER  AREAEXRBEL R
ERERHEEARRB 2 EE - AIEKA
BBRAKRAEER - BEBEREEER
B RABREABEMAERRERD AR
BAREEIR S

REFIAERELARELE - AKEA
BEBRITHR - MERBEEAR - ELH
MEBREIHEEENRDAE -

RZE-—AER-_ZE—-N\EFE+=A
=+ BZEXRBELERD R AE02% K&
02% ' 5TEMT :

2019 2018
—g-nE T )\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Total debts B BEE
— Loan from government authority — TR E 5k 2,350 2,350
2,350 2,350
Shareholders’ equity IE R = 1,238,533 1,133,025
Gearing ratio BARA G E 0.2% 0.2%
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to minimise
potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, contract assets, loan
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade, other and loan receivables. The Group allows an
average credit period of 180 days to its trade customers.
The amounts presented in the balance sheets are net of loss
allowance.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure
to any single trade counterparty or any Group of trade
counterparties having similar characteristics. It has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
contract assets, loan receivables, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and cash and bank balances included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China, to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution. Trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
other receivables are subject to the expected credit loss
model. To lower the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request deposits from certain of their customers
before delivery of goods.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has trade receivables from sales of products
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the ageing days. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2019
and 31 December 2018 was determined as follows for trade
receivables:

37.

B REBREE (R)
B EBEE(H)

(@)

EERK (&)
AEBHEETE SV BEREEL
FORMFBAEEEBEXNE
mIHERKE Z R - AEERA
BB B wEEREINR AL A
FTEEHEEEIE  RUIZER
W BRTAREWE SR EREE
FEHANTEHERE - Asf=27EH
EEEE  BREZEREREE
HIEER R AR D18 - TEE]
518 R B HE BN FUE S R AN B
FAEENEEBTEEBE -8
AEER EHARURMEERS
4 E EGRIERE M A BB A &
VE AT R ATIE LB R o R B
RZZE—NF+ZA=+—B8 k=
T N\Ft+_-_A=+—HHEKZ
SR EIERE I EEMA

Over
Within 6 months to Over 18
6 months 18 months months Total
HBiB6{E A
618 A Ui Z18f@H HBBR18MEA #et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hE&E
+=A=t+—~H
Gross carrying amount BEmEAE 153,691 130,787 11,360 295,838
Expected loss rate THHASE X 0-10% 10-25% 100%
Loss allowance gista i 3,278 21,046 11,360 35,684
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=-RA=+—8
Gross carrying amount RAEAE 232,039 24,357 13,316 269,712
Expected loss rate TEEAEIE X 0-10% 10-25% 100%
Loss allowance BiaRE 4,056 3,014 13,316 20,386

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

FEME 5 BR R R B B 18 R A &
MAZRT AR ERBEFE - HRIK
[B] 5% /i 2 M 3H 1 & B BIFE AR —
HA -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board of directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.
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REBEE R
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NEEHAERERARBDESFR -

TRBSI LB A BN EE
BB T A DEIE B SEE - THIRIEET
WRFRRSRE(BEREAN
Ml RATBFIE - AIERE
BRI R A E R FIR) AR A
B R AR AT AN R BT B
5 -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

37. BERERE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B mbsEE ()
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) b)) #"BELREMREGE)

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1year  1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5years 5years

HEEiE:) -ERg -F4Z MERE
FEE BENLH REX WER LR LE#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARET:R

2019 ZE-NF

Trade payables HNEGES 34,553 34,553 34,553 - - -
Contract liabilties LI 8,902 8,902 8,902 - - -
Other payables and acoruals ~ EHEMFUAR BT ER 270,051 270,051 270,051 - - -
Income tax payable [ERFTEH 29,255 29,255 29,255 - - -
Other tax payables At 22,516 22,516 22,516 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 19,746 19,746 19,746 - - -
Loan from government authority ERfF##EER 2,350 2,423 1,902 521 - -
387,373 387,446 386,925 521 - -

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

ATRRIAR —FR5 —FRE MERE
REE Rengs REX MR RER nEk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETT  ARETR ARETRT  AR%TR

2018 “E-)\E

Trade payables EREYES 31,705 31,705 31,705 = = =
Contract liabilities algfE 14,779 14,779 14,779 - - -
Other payables and accruals A ERFERE B 280,446 280,446 280,446 - - -
Income tax payable FERTFTSH 20,645 20,645 20,645 - - -
Other tax payables HftENFE 16,754 16,754 16,754 - - -
Dividend payable ERE 9,326 9,326 9,326 - - -
Loan from government authority BfT&EIE 2,350 2,452 1,313 640 499 -
376,005 376,107 374,968 640 499 -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. MBRREE(E)
Financial risk management (continued) B mEbsEE (&)
() Interest rate risk ) FE@b
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its AEBHFERRERFEZRBIETR
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance EEEVBENEE - REBF =X
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to EEMERSAEBEHERSRE
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as MERR ZEREEENASE
monitored by the management is set out below: FIEBOREHNAT -
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)N\F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAE BB FI%
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARET R % ARETIT
Variable rate borrowings % E(EE
Loan from government BT E R
authority 1.8 2,350 1.8 2,350

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2019, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits
by RMB23,500 (2018: RMB23,500).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or
commodity price risk.

()  Fair value estimation
()  Fair value hierarchy
This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an

37. BERERE (&)
B IS B TR (4])
(e) fErgEp
AEEBEEEEARIERERR
ok B AR o

) AREMGE

() RREER
ZEHRAEERMEHRE
R A ERER N Z/E

iﬁlfiﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁﬂflﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ
ite REHEBEEAREMA

indication about the reliability of the inputs used in ﬁj\%ﬁféﬁ—ﬁ*ﬁf?a TT
determining fair value, the Group has classified its AEBBBREEABH
financial instruments into the three levels prescribed MTEDR=E -
under the accounting standards.
2019 2018
—E-NF — )\
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR®T R ARETIT
Level 3 Recurring fair value FEBHREREEANE
measurements 2
Financial assets at fair value BARERT AEEN
through profit or loss SREE 23 683,483 571,612
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for RER - BEHEAALETE
recurring fair value measurements during the year. For F— K B 7 B mEeE
transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see (i) B o FEEHIEE A LE
below. i &R 32 (i) ©
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and REEBKRERABRERERRD
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end AREEBREENE A RE D
of the year. 5 -

TG B REL(CEERNERAR]
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

(f

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the year. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 37. MBRREE(E)
Financial risk management (continued) B mbsEE ()
()  Fair value estimation (continued) H BrREMR[EHE)
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (i) FIFEZET A HEHA El15
unobservable inputs (level 3) FTERAAE(EZER)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREVINRFEAE=EHT
instruments for the year: BHEs)
2019 2018
—E-NF —Z—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Opening balance FYRERR 571,612 =
Reclassified from available-for-sale HAHHENEREE
financial assets EHoHE - 483,000
Acquisitions g 1,360,000 967,000
Disposals B (1,256,612) (885,000
Net gain on financial assets at fair value & QA SLEFF A BRI 2 Eh
through profit or loss BENFRE 8,483 6,612
Closing balance FRER 683,483 571,612

The above instruments included in level 3 represent
wealth management products, both principal and non-
principal guaranteed, issued by financial institution in
the PRC which was classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit of loss.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The key unobservable input is the expected annualized
return rate of the financial product, ranging from
2.8% to 4.1% per annum, which is determined by the
financial institution.

EXE=ZBA&MEENTA
RTETREERITHNER
Em o BRERNMIERA
ZETEDBREARER
ABHHNEREE °

RER F—BH F_E
AR E=ERELEE -

FTERABEEHGASE A
b A S E A0 T B 2 SR B EB
FlhlmEE  DE28%E
41% °

EMEEEREACEXRNHERAH

T NFFIR
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. s iEERSRABERENSZ
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY o H’\Jﬂi&EE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial AEERZZ—NER=ZFT /\¢+_
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2019 and 2018 may be A=+—8H FﬁﬁEE NEMEEN S
categorised as follows: ERBREERTE T Pl T oA 48 -
2019 2018
—E-NF —=—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Financial assets %Eﬂﬁé
Financial assets at fair value through profit BARBEABRNSREE
or loss 683,483 571,612
Loan and receivables B R GRIE
(including cash and bank balances) (BIEES RRITEL) 665,294 678,383

Financial liabilities EHMEME N
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  Z#E SR A ERN S /A & 432,944 421,816

39. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 39. @& ZEBIELENEBYHEE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising TR AEEREETHEENBRE
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash FBHE BREEekIIEHSET @A
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for EHEANABARRASEGERS
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the MEXRPIBEAREGSRESRENE
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from DMEHARKRREME °

financing activities.

Loan from
government Dividend
authority payable Total
BUSH#EE R EERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREETTT ARETT
(Note 29)
(Kta29)
At 1 January 2018 A= —H—H 2,970 1,447 4,417
Cash outflows from %%/ﬁ Ebﬁfrf——rfﬁ/f Pias!
operating activities (53) = (63)
Financing cash outflows BER SR (620) (31,339 (31,959
Finance cost B TSRS 53 = 53
Dividend declared R EE Ik - 39,218 39,218
At 31 December 2018 R-ZT—)\F
+=-A=+—H 2,350 9,326 11,676
At 1 January 2019 R=ZZE—-NF—H—H 2,350 9,326 11,676
Financing cash outflows BVEIR S - (28,798) (28,798)
Dividend declared % B2k - 39,218 39,218
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF
+=—RA=+—H 2,350 19,746 22,096
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40. EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

41.

Following the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19”)
in early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures
have been and continued to be implemented across China. It has
affected the business and economic activities of the Group to a
certain extent. The Group has been paying close attention to the
development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluating its impact
on the financial position, cash flows and operating results of the
Group. It is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the
impacts on the Group’s financial position, cash flows and operating
results at the date on which these consolidated financial statements
are authorised for issue.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2020.

40. HEPRER

41.

2019 BMABHE T T FYIEE - —
RAFIEEGE LT HENTREE2ER
B £ TREELVEAEBNER
RSB ES) o ANEE ) E)E20198 AR
FERBER  FETHESAEEE
BRI R E R IENTE - BILERAD
kR BH - 2019 B R mERIBH AL
B B IS AR R IR R R B AT 5
CEE

Et B R EK
BEeR _E_TFEA=THEMLM
RT3 SR TSR o
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group A5 B B B T 24
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited {871 It A8

financial statements is set out below.

Operating Results

FRZFRA
S
RERE

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-RA=t-HLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE —Z-)N\F —E—+F —E—RF —Z-1F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR AREFT ARETT ARETTT ARETFTT
Revenue Hﬁz]\ \ 645,885 647,672 645,303 654,119 539,134
Cost of sales SHERA (107,533) (115,554) (114,250) (135,266) (108,352)
Gross profit %7? | 538,352 532,118 531,053 518,853 430,782
Other income and net gains ﬁﬂ”ﬁl)\&”ﬁlﬁﬁﬁz
or losses BEF 37,970 58,188 24,008 16,135 23,913
Distribution and selling costs iz &%Efﬁi‘i (336,217) (375,480) (335,128) (327,202) (271,170)
Administrative expenses ﬂBZE-ﬂ?Z (64,691) (28,450) (47,165) (40,400) (45,534)
Profit from operations & /ﬁnﬂ 175,414 186,376 172,768 167,386 137,991
Finance costs g (120) (53) - (101) (209
Profit before income tax BRFT{S B A& F 175,294 186,323 172,768 167,285 137,782
Income tax expense iSRS (30,568) (25,107) (28,366) (24,619) (20,144)
Profit for the yeer attrioutebleto ~ FRARAHEFA
owners of the Company FEAE A 144,726 161,216 144,402 142,670 117,638
Assets and Liabilities EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
“E-NE —T\E5 2 F ZERE “T-hF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RVMB'000
AR®TR ARETT ARETT AREFTT AREFTT
Bearer biological assets N EYEE 13,402 11,745 11,440 10,844 5,567
Property, plant and equipment ME - HE REE 145,242 156,591 166,133 172,672 134,086
Prepared lease payments ENtilEe - 15,068 15,520 15,974 16,428
Right-of-use assets FHESE 38,340 = = = =
Construction in progress 2T 74,061 67,588 44,127 23,271 74,557
Intangible assets EVEE - - - - 659
Deferred tax assets BIERIBEE 1,510 944 316 = =
Current assets REEE 1,398,922 1,302,905 1,000,536 852,495 675,807
Current liabilities TEAE (387,872) (375,484 (200,083) (180,198) (152.941)
Non-current liabilities ERDAR (45,072) (46,332) (26,962) (28,433) (31,008)
Net assets BEFHE 1,238,533 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955
Share capital A 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 1,182,508 1,077,000 955,002 810,600 667,930
Total equity BEREE 1,238,533 1,133,025 1,011,027 866,625 723,955
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